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The Purpose of this Amendment is to provide new information and clarification regarding the solicitation. 
 
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS RECEIVED THROUGH THE DEADLINE OF NOVEMBER 15, 2019. 
 
Questions: 
 

1. Can you please let me know how many EE’s are employed by the district, both PT and FT? A: 5100 
 

2. We are looking for page 44 to be extracted so that we can email to our clients for completion of the References 
requirement.  Is that something that can be provided in either pdf or word for just that page?  A: The District has 
purposely chosen to lock this particular form.  You may print it out, scan it in, and email it to your clients. 
 

3. The PDF of the RFP is password protected, so we are unable to extract any pages and/or edit the doc, which 
requires signatures and data fields... Can we attain a version that is unlocked so we can complete the forms and I 
can extract appropriate pages to SME's?  A: The District has purposely chosen to lock the RFP due to tampering in 
the past.  Any field that can be filled electronically has been unlocked for that purpose and a large portion of the RFP 
has been provided as a Word doc.  As actual signatures are required on all forms for the RFP, Offerors will need to 
print out those pages, have them signed, and include them in their original submitted proposal.  Scans with actual 
signatures should be included in all requested hard and electronic copies as well. 

 
4. Under which tab should we include sample materials and attachments?  A: Samples and additional attachments may 

be placed with the Additional Materials Submitted form under Tab 4 OR as Appendix in the proposal folders and 
electronic files.   

 
5. What’s driving the marketing of these services? Any service or solution issues?  A: Per school district procurement 

law, the District must rebid for these services every up to five (5) years.  There are no service issues.   
 

6. Why has the School District decided to bid these services at this time (fees, service issues, standard due diligence, 
etc.)?  A:  Per school district procurement law, the District may only enter into contracts for a maximum of five (5) 
years at a time.  Our current provider is contracted through June 30, 2020. 
 

a. Are there service level concerns with the current administrator?  A:  None at all, our current administrator 
provides excellent, timely service. 

b. If no service issues, what would be the catalyst for School District to change administrators?  A:  Competitive 
fees, standard due diligence. 
 

7. Who is the current carrier for administrating HSA and what are the pain points Gilbert Public Schools is currently 
facing?  A: HealthEquity, no pain points. 
 

8. How long has the current administrator provided services to the SD?  A: Since 2010. 
 

9. Does the current HSA service provider provide claims integration? A: Yes. HealthEquity can accept claims files at any 
frequency preferred by Gilbert Public Schools or their health plan. This integration will allow participants to view 
claims directly from HealthEquity’s Member Portal. Our high-performing model for claims integration operates through 
a very efficient process, established for synchronizing data received for integration into the HealthEquity platform. 
This seamless user interface for both Gilbert Public Schools and its employees offers the ability to integrate eligibility, 
claims data, and contributions to create an automated employer and participant experience. 
 

10. Can you disclose the current Per Participant Per Month HSA Administrative fee? Does this fee include the debit card 
or is that an additional fee?  A: See Scope of Work/Specifications page 27 
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11. Will the School District provide the current performance guarantees established with the current provider?  A: The 

District is choosing not to disclose that information at this time, as we do not think that it is necessary to respond to 
the RFP. 
 

12. Has the current administrator paid penalties for failing to meet performance guarantees? Is so, where did they call 
short?  A: The District is choosing not to disclose that information at this time, as we do not think that it is necessary 
to respond to the RFP. 
 

13. Does the district contribute to the employees’ HSA?  A: Yes. 
 

a. If so, how much does the district contribute and what is the frequency of these contributions (Lumps sum on 
7/1, quarterly, per pay period, etc)?  A: Per pay period/20 pay periods. For the Trust 1500 plan, the 
contribution is $18.75, for the Trust 2500 the contribution is $36.25. 

 
14. How many of the participants are investing their HSA funds?  A: Approximately twenty-one (21) participants from 

Gilbert Public Schools are investing their HSA funds. 
 

15. Can the current HSA account be used by all dependents of the employee, or is it limited in any way?  A: An HSA 
accountholder’s funds can only be used for qualified medical expenses for IRS-qualified tax dependents. 

 
16. What percentage of your population has invested their HSA assets?  A: Approximately 4.1% of accountholders have 

invested their HSA assets. 
 

17. How many participants in the HSA program do not contribute to their plans?  A: 544 
 

18. How many investors versus non-investors?  A: As mentioned above, 4.1% of accountholders invest their HSA funds 
versus 95.9% of non-investors. 

 
19. What are the current investment fees?  Employee paid?  Employer paid?  A: While there are no additional transaction 

charges, there is an investment account custodial fee. The average fund expense ratio of the funds from the eleven 
(11) asset classes is 0.09%, and the average fund expense ratio of target date funds is 0.15%. In addition to the 
mutual fund’s respective expense ratio, a monthly investment platform administrative fee is charged by HealthEquity 
for recordkeeping and fiduciary services (0.033% of the average monthly investment value, which is paid by 
employees out of their HSA cash balance). HealthEquity does not receive any other form of additional compensation 
such as revenue share or 12b1 fees, and there are no sales charges/loads, trading fees, short-term redemption fees 
or fund minimums. 

 
20. Do you have an investment committee or appointed an investment advisory firm for investment related services? If 

so, what is the name of the firm or entity?  A: All funds offered are continuously monitored by HealthEquity Advisors, 
LLC, an SEC Registered Investment Advisor, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of HealthEquity Inc. 
 

21. Total assets under management?  A: $1,358,543.78 as of 10/31/2019. 
 

22. What are the average balances for your HSA program?  A: Average balances are as follows: 
 

a. Average HSA custodial cash balance: $1,609 
b. Average HSA custodial asset balance: $2,027 
c. Average investor HSA custodial cash balance: $3,060 
d. Average Investor HSA custodial investments balance: $10,255 
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23. What are the contribution amounts made by the employees in the HSA program?  A:  Contribution amounts range 

from $0 - $9500 per year. 
 

24. Is there a current investment threshold for the HSA accounts?  A: As it relates to account thresholds, once members 
have more than $2,000 in cash, they can move the excess to their investment portfolios. Once invested, any cash 
balance that subsequently drops below the $2,000 investment threshold will not require members to sell investments 
to refill the cash balance as there are neither minimum dollar amounts that must be invested nor per transaction fees. 

 
25. How are assets split between cash and investments? A: $76,156.53 are investments as of 10/31/2019; 

$1,282,387.25 are available cash as of 10/31/2019. 
 

26. What percentage of HSA dollars are invested?  A: 5.61% of HSA AUM is invested, as of 10/31/2019. 
 

27. Are there any particular features or services that Gilbert Public Schools is looking for?  A:  Simple electronic funding 
process, participant portal access, customer service center for participant inquiries, communication/marketing 
materials mailed to participant homes.  
 

28. Do you contribute to an employee’s HSA account, and if yes what are they, Family/Single?  A: See question 13 
 

29. Are your population of account holders primarily spenders, savers, or investors?  A: This information is not available 
 

30. Does the School District work with a benefits consultant or broker?  If so, who (name, company).  A:  Please see 
page 1 of the RFP, paragraph four (4) and page 26 under District Overview. 
 

31. Who is your benefit administration platform provider and payroll vendor? Does the School District anticipate any 
changes to these platforms or replacement of current systems?  A: Tyler Technologies, iVisions – no changes to 
these platforms are expected in the foreseeable future. 

 
32. Are any communication/marketing materials being mailed directly to participant homes? If so, what is the quantity? Is 

this collateral being mailed to all eligible employees or current participants?  A:  None at this time.  We would like 
communication to be sent to all current participants. 

 
33. Is there any requirement for marketing material to be mailed? What was the quantity and number of locations for the 

most recent plan year? Can material be emailed or otherwise posted on the website?  A: Other than sending account 
access cards to new members, there was not a requirement for marketing materials to be mailed. 
 

34. What is the expectation / projections for increased participation? Has enrollment been relatively flat the past two plan 
years?  A:  Enrollment has been consistent for the past two (2) years.  Half of our eligible employees are enrolled in 
an HSA. 
 

35. What amenities or service features do you like the most about the current HSA administrator?  A:  Fast, simple 
funding process, excellent communication and quick, almost instantaneous response time from account manager. 

 
36. Does the School District have new technological objectives for administration of these services?  A: No. 

 
37. Are there particular features or processes the School District is seeking in the chosen vendor?  A: Investment 

opportunities along with education to participants instructing how to invest HSA dollars.  Fast, simple funding process, 
excellent communication, online portal account access for all participants. We would like the service provider to 
complete identity verification processes by communicating with the participant via phone, mail, or email. 
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38. Approximately what percentage of your employee base has access to email?  A: 100% 

 
39. Can the School District provide information regarding any service provider expectations involved with annual open 

enrollment meetings, including the format the SD might utilize as part of this process? How many days and locations 
will the new service provider be expected to attend?  A: We do not expect the service provider to attend open 
enrollment, but would rather have our service provider attend our annual Employee Benefits Fair held each year in 
April for one (1) day. 
 
 

Corrections: 
Changes are noted in red. 
 
Questionnaire, Page 37 
 
15.   b.  Do you have any experience working with the District’s PBM, WellDyne CVS/Caremark? 
 
26.  Must all participants us use the debit card or can only certain individuals elect the debit card option? 
 
Proposal Price Sheet, Page 41 
 
IN YOUR REPONSE, PLEASE INDICATE ON THE PROPOSAL PRICE SHEET WHETHER YOU WILL WAIVE THE 
ADMINISTRATION FEES ON ACCOUNTS WITH A BALANCE OF OVER $2,500. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RESPONSIBILITY TO CHECK FOR AMENDEMENTS:  
 
It is the vendors’ responsibility to check the AZ Purchasing Website or Gilbert Public Schools Website for 
amendments issued.  Each Solicitation Amendment shall be acknowledged on the Amendment 
Acknowledgement & Non-Collusion Affidavit and/or below by the person signing the Proposal. 

 
Vendor hereby acknowledges receipt & understanding of the above amendment.   

   

Signature  Date 

   

Typed Name & Title   

   

Company Name   

 


